
 

 

 
CHEADLE STAKEHOLDER MEETING AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Wednesday, 15 December 2021 

Time: 
 

9.30 am 

Venue: 

 

Virtual Meeting 

13 December 2021  

 
PART 1 

1. Welcome and apologies  

2. Minutes of the previous meetings - 22 June 2021 (Panel Meeting) and 7 September 
2021 (Engagement Review Meeting) (Pages 3 - 10) 

3. Survey Results - Report from Filigree Communications (Pages 11 - 44) 

4. Next Steps in the Community Engagement Programme - Verbal Update  

5. Leisure Transformation Plan - Verbal Update  

6. High Street Taskforce - Verbal Update  

7. Council's Emerging Car Park Strategy - Verbal Update  

8. Report to the Meeting of The Cabinet on 8 February 2022  

 
ANDREW STOKES 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 

  
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4 
 

Cheadle Stakeholder Panel 
Meeting held at 11.30 on Tuesday 22nd June 2021 via MS TEAMS 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present 
 
Cllr Ian Plant – chair Sarah Porru, SMDC 
Cllr M Deaville, SCC Nicola Kemp SMDC 
Cllr G Bentley, SMDC Rob Wilks, SMDC 
Cllr K Martin, SMDC Lisa Hoyland, SMDC 
Cllr R Alcock, SMDC Jo Bagnall, SMDC 
Cllr H Black, CTC Tim Mills, FMG Consulting 
Cllr P Upton, CTC Sam Holgate, Filigree Communications 
Cllr P Jackson, SMDC  
Cllr S Ellis, SMDC  
Fr Eric Kemball, Churches Together 
S Ball, Moorlands Home Link 

 

I Wozniak, Team Cheadle  
N Hewitt, Chamber of Commerce 
 

 

  
 
Apologies 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
 Cllr S Ralphs, Leader SMDC  
 Phil Brenner, CCG  
 Cllr P Routledge, SMDC 
 Ian Atherton, Staffordshire Clubs for Young People 
 Neil Rodgers, SMDC 
 Gail Edwards, SCC 
 
 
1. Welcome 
 
1.1 The chair welcomed all those attending. 
 
 
2.   Minutes of the last meeting 
 
2.1 The minutes of the last meeting were agreed as a correct record.   
 
 
3. Matters arising 
 
3.1 An invitation had been extended to the Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust to attend a meeting of the Panel.  Jennie Collier, Managing Director of the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Page 2 of 4 
 

Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Care Group was on leave for the June Panel, 
but asked to be invited to a future meeting. 

 
 
4. Sub Group updates 
 
4.1 Ivan Wozniak presented initial feedback from the Team Cheadle questionnaire.  

516 replies had been received, from a good spread of age-groups.  Analysis of 
the responses was ongoing and a report will be produced.  Early indications of 
key findings were that: 
 A spread of new house types were seen to be needed. 
 A health centre and traffic improvements were requested.  Restricting HGVs 

from the town centre was suggested. 
 A thriving market and flexible or free parking were considered to be 

measures that would encourage people to visit the town centre more. 
 People feel safe and would like increased maintenance of street furniture. 
 It was agreed that tourism would benefit the town and that accommodation 

as well as more places to eat and drink were required. 
 Music, events and family activities on the Market Place and Tape Street, as 

well as a new community centre, would be welcomed. 
 People were happy with the current location of the Leisure Centre 

 
4.2 There was discussion of the link between delivery of new homes and growth.  

Providing new homes would stimulate and support town centre shops and other 
activities that people were looking for.  However managing traffic in the town 
centre was considered to be a key issue. 

 
4.3 It was agreed that it would be useful to help schools facilitate completion of the 

Team Cheadle questionnaire by young people.  Protection issues around the 
storage of the personal data of children would need to be resolved.  Traffic 
congestion around schools at the start and finish of the school day also needed 
to be looked at. 

 
 
5. High Street Taskforce update 
 
5.1 A meeting was to be held with the Taskforce on 30th June and a report could 

be provided to the next Panel meeting. 
 
 
6. Leisure Transformation Plan 
 
6.1 Tim Mills of FMG Consulting gave a presentation on progress with the District 

Council’s Leisure Transformation Plan (LTP). 
 
6.2 In response to questions, it was confirmed that: 

 Any new swimming pool delivered would be a competition pool. 
 Emerging plans for refurbishment or replacement of the Leisure Centre 

would be shared with residents once a clearer position had been settled. 

Page 4



Page 3 of 4 
 

 Proposals for the “offer” provided by an upgraded Leisure Centre were 
considered not to represent a “shrinking” of the Centre, but a refocus to meet 
new demand in areas such as health and fitness.  Consultants would 
continue to engage with Sport England to understand where the body 
suggested there was a strategic need for a 50m pool. 

 An important part of attracting new and continuing users of the activity 
spaces of the Leisure Centre was the provision of supporting facilities such 
as good changing rooms, a café and a soft play area for young children. 

 The timescale for FMG’s continuing work on the LTP was being aligned with 
the community engagement programme proposed for Cheadle. 

 
  
7. Community Engagement Programme 
 
7.1 Sam Holgate of Filigree Communications gave a presentation on the emerging 

strategy for community engagement in Cheadle. 
 
7.2 In response to questions it was confirmed that: 

 There would be an opportunity for Panel members to review the Newsletter 
and Survey before its distribution. 

 The Council would coordinate with surrounding Town and Parish Councils 
to facilitate website links that help promote the Community Newsletter and 
Survey to residents beyond Cheadle. 

 
7.3 It was agreed that it would be useful to provide an update to the Panel on the 

District’s emerging car park strategy. 
 
 
8. Role of the Panel in supporting participation in the survey 
 
8.1 Panel members were invited to share widely copies of the community 

newsletter - both print copies and digital - once these had been agreed.  It was 
considered important that residents were encouraged to take part in the survey 
by sharing links via social media, email, and in conversation. 

 
 
9. Next steps 
 
9.1 The key next steps were to: 
 

 Cushman & Wakefield to complete the appraisal of the two additional 
options identified by the Stakeholder Workshop (at Royal Walk: New build 
retirement village, with a mix of property options supported by satellite 
services, to be delivered and managed as a commercial venture; and at 
Tape Street car park: Improved public realm providing opportunity to host 
outdoor events, offering a cycling / walking hub and an associated 
community centre). 

 Promote copies of the first community newsletter and survey, encouraging 
participation by residents. 

Page 5



Page 4 of 4 
 

 Provide support for the development of Phase 2 of the community 
engagement programme – including a second newsletter to relay feedback 
from the survey and publicise the dates for the consultation events to be 
organised.  These events are likely to be a mix of virtual and in person 
events, and will share place based options to seek feedback from the local 
community. 

 Undertake an analysis of options, consultation responses and other public 
feedback to advise SMDC Cabinet on a way forward, including the 
recommendation of a preferred option. 

 Develop a Business Case for the preferred option. 
 
 
8. Any other business 
 
8.1 There was none. 
 
 
Summary of actions agreed 
 
1. An invitation will be extended to the Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

to attend the next meeting. 
2. A report of the High Street Taskforce meeting held on 30th June will be provided to 

the next Panel meeting. 
3. The Council will coordinate with surrounding Town and Parish Councils to facilitate 

website links to help promote the Community Newsletter and Survey. 
4. An item on the emerging Car Park Strategy will be brought to a future Panel 

meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 6



Page 1 of 4 
 

Cheadle Engagement Review 
Meeting held at 13.00 on Tuesday 7th September 2021 via MS TEAMS 

 
 

MINUTES 

 
Present 

 
Cllr Ian Plant – chair Sarah Porru, SMDC 

Cllr S Ralphs, Leader SMDC  Neil Rodgers, SMDC 
Cllr M Deaville, SCC Gail Edwards, SCC 
Cllr S Ellis, SMDC Carolyn Sanders, SMDC 

S Ball, Moorlands Home Link Jo Bagnall, SMDC 
Cllr K Martin, SMDC Sam Holgate, Filigree Communications 

Cllr R Alcock, SMDC  
Cllr S Walley, Mayor Cheadle  
Cllr P Upton, CTC  

  
  
Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 

 Phil Brenner, CCG  

 Ian Atherton, Staffordshire Clubs for Young People 

 Fr Eric Kemball, Churches Together 

 N Hewitt, Chamber of Commerce 

 I Wozniak, Team Cheadle 

 Cllr S Haines, CTC 

 Cllr G Bentley, SMDC 

 Cllr P Routledge, SMDC 

 Cllr P Jackson, SMDC 

 
 
1. Welcome 

 

1.1 The chair welcomed all those attending. 
 
 
2.   Newsletter/Survey delivery issues 

 

2.1 It was recognised that there had been a great deal of social media activity in 
relation to the survey.  There had been a high number of messages posted in 
relation to distribution issues with households complaining that they had not 

received a copy.  A number of groundless and unacceptable personal attacks 
had also been made on Councillors via social media.  Members of the Panel 

had been quick to bring these concerns to the attention of the Council and a 
three week extension to the survey had been agreed in response. 

 

Page 7



Page 2 of 4 
 

2.2 Concerns over the initial phase of the community engagement programme in 
Cheadle were highlighted, including: 

 

 Whilst the population of Cheadle is almost 12,000, around 5,000 

newsletter/surveys were distributed, one to each residential address. 

 Many people in Cheadle reported that they had not received a copy. 

 Where logistically possible, the Council should consider involving more 
people in the distribution of newsletters, for example members of the Town 
Council. 

 Consideration should be given to increasing the distribution area for the 
newsletter/survey, to include the rural areas around Cheadle. 

 Leaflets needed to be moved to a more prominent position in the leisure 
centre. 

 The survey did not pick up on the earlier questionnaire organised by Team 
Cheadle. 

 Minutes of meetings were often circulated late. 

 SMDC Officers were invited to attend a Cheadle Town Council meeting, 
but no one was available or offered to attend a subsequent meeting. 

 Use of social media to spread personal insults and attacks on the Council 
is not acceptable. 

 No specific proposals are yet on the table for people to comment on. 

 Sir Bill Cash MP had raised questions about Council consultation in 

Cheadle and about the future of the Community Hospital. 

 The Council needed to communicate better. 

 Some residents were sceptical of the current engagement programme and 
feared that Cheadle’s assets were at risk. 

 Cheadle’s concerns were summarised as being principally the hospital, the 

leisure centre and High Street parking. 
  

2.2 It was agreed that the project team needed now to start to focus on identifying 
and consulting on projects for delivery. 

 

 
3. Review of response rate and initial issues emerging 

 

3.1 Filigree Communications gave a presentation setting out the initial responses 
received to the survey.  Key points were: 

 

 As of 9am on Friday 3rd September, the survey has been completed 625 

times. 

 There are approximately 5,150 households in Cheadle which shows that 

12% of households had completed the survey so far.  

 A 2019 population estimate gave Cheadle a population of 11,353 which 
shows that 5.5% of the population had completed the survey so far. 

 
3.2 Priority One - We must welcome more people to live in Cheadle – had so far 

received the most comments.  Common themes included: 

 Cheadle not having the facilities to support more people, particular 

reference had been made on the pressure on schools and doctors. 

Page 8



Page 3 of 4 
 

 The current road system in Cheadle being insufficient and unable to 
support more cars which an increased population would bring.  

 The view that there is no more capacity for housing developments and 
more people.  A common view had also been that any new housing should 

be affordable. 
 

3.3 Priority Two - We must make it easy to shop, spend time and money in 
Cheadle - had so far received the second most comments.  Common themes 
included: 

 Cheadle’s current shopping offer not being sufficient to both retain locals 
and attract tourists.  

 The need for free parking to help achieve this priority and the current cost 
of parking acting as a barrier.  

 More support needed for businesses. 

 
3.4 Priority Three - Providing flexible parking options is a priority - had so far 

received the second to least amount of comments.  Common themes 

included: 
 

 The need for free parking with a time limit ie first two hours free, short term 
free parking.  

 The general need for parking to be free/ cheaper.  

 The agreement that parking options should be flexible. 
 

3.5 Priority Four - Cheadle needs to retain a similar leisure offer with improved 
quality of facilities - had so far received the third most comments.  Common 

themes included: 
 

 The view that the leisure centre should be retained and improved upon on 

the current site.  

 That there should be more and improved leisure facilities in Cheadle.  

 The value and need of the current swimming pool 
 

3.6 Priority Five - Integrated services will benefit community health and wellbeing 
-had so far received the least amount of comments.  Common themes 
included: 

 

 The view that services should be integrated into/ increased at Cheadle 

Hospital.  

 That this priority was too vaguely worded to respond to. 

 The need for services to be accessible to all without the need for local 
people to travel to access them. 

 

3.7 It was agreed that the views of young people were important to understand 
and it would be helpful to liaise with schools and sixth form colleges over 

access to the survey. 
 

Page 9



Page 4 of 4 
 

3.8 It was considered that the initial findings as set out above identified the 
concerns of Cheadle residents and it was now important to present site 

specific options to review. 
 

 
4. Overview of next steps in the engagement programme 

 

4.1 Filigree Communications gave a presentation setting out next steps.  These 
were that: 

 

 The survey continues to run until Friday 24th September. 

 The full survey results will be shared with the Stakeholder Panel at the end 

of September. 

 Consultation materials setting out site specific options will be finalised by 

late October. 

 The second Community Newsletter will be distributed and consultation 

events held in November. 
 
4.2 Suitable venues for the consultation events were considered to be the Cricket 

Club, Guild Hall and Leisure Centre. 
 
 
Summary of actions agreed 

 

1. To issue a press release providing an update for the community engagement 
programme following the meeting. 

2. To let the existing distribution arrangements ride. 
3. To maintain the end date of the survey at 24th September. 
4. To hold a Stakeholder Panel meeting as soon as further information was 

available and ideally at the end of September. 
 

 
 

Page 10



Cheadle survey feedback analysis  

 
 
 
 
This report provides an overview of feedback received in response to a survey on emerging priorities for 
the town centre of Cheadle.  
 
It has been prepared by Filigree, on behalf of Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. 
 
The report includes an introduction, setting out the context for the survey and is followed by a section - 
Response to Priorities - that examines the community views towards the five priorities presented within 
the survey looking at the trends and most commonly raised points.  
A copy of the survey as well as a full demographic breakdown of Cheadle’s population can be found in 
the appendices.   

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



1 

INTRODUCTION
 

 
The survey, ‘A way forward for Cheadle’ was 
undertaken by Filigree on behalf of Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council and was open for six 
weeks from Monday 19th August to Friday 24th 
September.   
 
The online survey was hosted on Survey Monkey and 
paper versions were  included in a newsletter which 
was distributed to just over 5,000 households in 
Cheadle.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The purpose of the survey was to determine views on five 
emerging priorities for the town centre. These priorities 
were presented in the newsletter and communicated 
widely through local media and the Council’s digital 
communication channels.  
 
A copy of the full survey - is included in Appendix B.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



2 

PART ONE - RESPONSE TO PRIORITIES 
 

 
The survey asked respondents to consider five emerging priorities that were proposed to inform the 
regeneration of Cheadle town centre. Within this section of the report, we take each of these priorities 
in turn and present a full analysis of the responses.  
 
 

Priority one: We must welcome more people to live in Cheadle 
 
This priority sought views on whether regeneration options for the town centre should provide more 
opportunity for people to live close to the centre of Cheadle through the delivery of new homes. 
 
Respondents were asked whether they agreed or disagreed with this as a priority. Responses also 
included ‘not sure’ and the option to skip the question entirely if respondents did not want to answer. 
 
A summary of responses to this priority is provided below. A full breakdown is included in the table 
below. 
 

 
Just over half of 
respondents (54%) said 
that they disagreed with 
the suggestion that more 
people should be 
welcomed to live in 
Cheadle. This indicates 
that many respondents 
do not see the need for 
more new homes  within 
the town centre.   
 
It is worth noting that 

44% agreed  with this statement or weren’t sure. This suggests that there is some support for increasing 
options for town centre living or the provision of new homes generally. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



3 

Response Number of respondents Percentage of total respondents 

Agree 230 27.3 

Disagree 457 54.3 

Not sure  144 17.1 

Skipped 10 1.1 

 
98.8% of respondents chose to respond to this question. 
 
Respondents were also able to explain their response and add further comments in a free text box. The 
key points are listed below. 
 

● The vast majority of people who added more detail noted that Cheadle needed improvements 
to the community infrastructure, namely investment in education, health and transport.  
 

● A significant number of respondents stated the view that there are already too many people in 
the town and that there was too much development at the moment.  
 

● On housing, a number of respondents noted that affordable housing and smaller homes were 
needed.  
 

In some cases, where comments covered a range of subjects, these have been split into multiple 
categories. A breakdown of the most common feedback points is detailed below. 
 

Comment  Number of comments 

Current facilities e.g. schools, doctors are insufficient. More facilities and services are needed. 232 

Road infrastructure is insufficient. Better road infrastructure is needed. 232 

Current infrastructure is insufficient and needs to improve.  108 

There are too many people and also developments at the moment.  80 

We need more affordable or social housing and smaller homes.  30 

We need to encourage more people as more people means more money spent in the town. 15 

Development will have a negative effect on the environment. 12 

Improvements to the public realm are needed. 7 

We need to encourage young people and families to stay and live in Cheadle. 6 

The small market town feel of Cheadle should be respected and maintained.  5 

Page 14



4 

We should welcome people to existing houses in Cheadle.  4 

We need more (and improved) facilities to encourage people to live in Cheadle.  4 

The town is underfunded.  3 

We should look after existing residents. 3 

The leisure offer should be improved. 3 

We need free and easier parking options. 2 

We should encourage tourists to Cheadle. 2 

The current public transport offer is poor. 1 

Other  36 

 
 
A few of the comments that were shared in response to this priority are included below. 
 
“We want Cheadle to be a stronger community. This can be achieved by encouraging people to consider 
living in the town. The council must, therefore, improve the infrastructure to promote Cheadle as a viable 
option to reside in.” 
 
“The road infrastructure is already at capacity and needs improving before any more people are 
encouraged to move to Cheadle.  The town already needs more doctors and dental surgeries and schools 
at its current capacity, without more people coming to live in Cheadle and adding further pressure onto 
these services.” 
 
“There are hundreds of houses being built in Cheadle at the moment. How are all these people going to 
'live in Cheadle' ? We already can't get doctors and dentist appointments. The schools are oversubscribed 
too. The roads are gridlocked at certain times of day. We need to make it better for those who already 
live here.”  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



5 

Priority two: We must make it easy to shop, spend time and money in Cheadle  
 
This priority sought views on whether options for the town centre should include changes designed to 
encourage and support people to spend more time and money in the town centre. 
 
Respondents were asked whether they agreed or disagreed with this as a priority. Responses also 
included ‘not sure’ and the option to skip the question entirely if respondents did not want to answer. 
 
A summary  of responses to this priority can be seen below. A full breakdown is included in the table 
below. 
     

Nearly all the respondents 
(95%) said that they agreed  
that steps should be taken to 
make it easy to shop, spend 
time and money in Cheadle. 
This suggests broad support for 
the need to take action 
designed to encourage locals to 
dwell in the town centre and to 
attract more visitors. 

 
     
   

Response Number of respondents Percentage of total respondents 

Agree 802 95.3 

Disagree 10 1.1 

Not sure  18 2.1 

Skipped 11 1.3 

 

98.7% of respondents chose to respond to this question.  
 
Respondents were also able to explain their response and add further comments in a free text box. The 
key points are listed below. 
 

● A large proportion of people who added more detail noted that Cheadle needed free or cheaper 
parking to support the vitality of the town centre. 
 

● A large number of respondents noted that Cheadle needed more or a greater variety of shops.  

Page 16



6 

 
● Specific support for business was mentioned by a number of respondents who suggested 

grants, lower business rates and initiatives to encourage people to shop locally.  
 
In some cases, where comments covered a range of subjects, comments have been split into multiple 
categories. A breakdown of the most common feedback points is detailed below. 
 

Comment  Number of comments 

We need free or cheaper parking.  113 

We need more shops or a greater variety of shops. 89 

Local businesses should be supported with grants, lower business rents. People should be 
encouraged to shop local.  

70 

The cost of parking is too high and discourages people from shopping in Cheadle. 52 

The current shopping offer in Cheadle is poor. 51 

Public realm improvements are needed.  49 

We need free short stay parking. 48 

The road infrastructure and  traffic is a problem.  21 

We need to welcome more big brands to Cheadle. 18 

Help shops affected by the landslide. 14 

We need food markets and events. 14 

Investment in the town is needed. 11 

Pedestrianise the high street. 10 

Easier parking is needed. 9 

Need to look at the provision of parking in Cheadle. 7 

We need free parking days.  6 

Capitalise on Cheadle’s location.  5 

Introduce parking schemes.  5 

Improve walking and cycling options. 2 

Accessibility is important.  2 

A sensible parking policy is needed. 1 

We need long stay parking.  1 

Other  45 

Page 17



7 

 
A few of the comments that were shared in response to this priority are included below. 
 
“Much better and cheaper parking for workers and visitors like free weekend parking for all. This would 
encourage people to come.” 
 
“A more varied section of shops is needed so we can stay local and not always have to drive to Uttoxeter 
or Stoke or even further. Supporting the existing individual shops is vital.” 
 
“Definitely as a shop owner we need help. Many of my business owner friends along with myself are 
struggling as footfall is absolutely dire. If help doesn’t become available soon the high street will be none 
existent.” 
 
 
 
  

Page 18



8 

Priority three: Providing flexible parking options is a priority  
 
This priority sought views on whether options for the town centre should include updated parking 
provision that better meets local needs. 
 
Respondents were asked whether they agreed or disagreed with this as a priority. Responses also 
included ‘not sure’ and the option to skip the question entirely if respondents did not want to answer. 
 
A summary of responses to this priority can be seen below. A full breakdown is included in the table 
below. 

 
The majority of respondents 
(85%) said that they agreed 
that providing flexible 
parking options is a priority.  
This suggests broad support 
for the need for more 
flexibility in parking options 
in Cheadle.   
 
 
 
 

 

Response Number of respondents Percentage of total respondents 

Agree 713 84.7 

Disagree 62 7.3 

Not sure  55 6.5 

Skipped 11 1.3 

 
98.7% of respondents chose to respond to this question. 
 
Respondents were also able to explain their response and add further comments in a free text box. The 
key points are listed below. 
 

● The vast majority of respondents went on to state that free, short stay parking was needed or 
cheaper parking in general.  
 

Page 19



9 

● A number of respondents noted that free parking to coincide with school drop off or pick up 
was needed and also for those who work in the town centre.  

 

Comment  Number of comments 

We need free short stay parking.  124 

Free or cheaper car parking is needed. 111 

We need free parking at school times or for workers. 38 

The cost of parking is too high. 37 

Parking provision is adequate.  19 

We need free parking days. 17 

We need flexible options. 15 

We need contactless payment methods for parking. 14 

“Flexible” is too vague a term to respond to.  12 

Car parking should be in a central location. Encourage the use of car parks to stop people 
parking on residential streets. 

9 

This should encourage people to shop local.  8 

Improve shops and restaurants in Cheadle.  8 

We need parking permits. 7 

Introduce a ‘redeem in store’ parking scheme.  6 

Maintain car parks. 6 

Traffic is a problem. 5 

We need more disabled parking spaces. 3 

Easier parking is needed. 2 

Improve public transport options. 2 

No change is needed. 2 

Public realm improvements are needed. 2 

Introduce a park and ride scheme or encourage people to park further away from the town. 2 

The length of car parking charges are too long. 1 

We need more parking spaces. 1 

Other 47 

 

Page 20



10 

A few of the comments that were shared in response to this priority are included below. 
 
“Free parking for 20 minutes then lower fairer parking charges thereafter. Making parking expensive will 
put people off from coming here and could cause local streets to be blocked.” 
 
“If parking was free people would be more likely to pop to the high street rather than go to the 
supermarket where it is free.”  
 
“Free parking should be available for school times to avoid dangerous congestion outside the main 
schools.”  
 
 
 
  

Page 21



11 

Priority four: Cheadle needs to retain a similar leisure offer with improved 
quality of facilities  
 
This priority sought views on whether options for the town centre should be developed and delivered in 
such a way as to enable the provision of an improved quality of leisure facilities. 
 
Respondents were asked whether they agreed or disagreed with this as a priority. Responses also 
included ‘not sure’ and the option to skip the question entirely if respondents did not want to answer. 
 
A summary  of responses to this priority can be seen below. A full breakdown is included in the table 
below. 
 

 
The majority of respondents 
(83%) said that they agreed 
that Cheadle needs to retain 
a similar leisure offer with 
improved quality of facilities. 
This suggests broad support 
for the need to retain a 
broadly similar leisure offer 
as Cheadle has now, but with 
improvements to the quality 
of facilities and services.  
 
 

 
 

Response Number of respondents Percentage of total respondents 

Agree 697 82.9 

Disagree 84 10 

Not sure  45 5.4 

Skipped 15 1.8 

 
98.2% of respondents chose to respond to this question. 
 
Respondents were also able to explain their response and add further comments in a free text box. The 
key points are listed below. 

Page 22



12 

 
● An overwhelming majority of respondents went on to state that the current leisure centre 

should be retained and improved in the same location. 
 

● Many respondents acknowledged that the leisure facilities need to be improved.  
 

● A significant number of respondents noted that it was important to keep and improve the 
swimming pool.  
   

Comment  Number of comments 

Retain and improve the current leisure centre. 217 

We need more / improved leisure facilities. 81 

Keep / improve the swimming pool.  48 

The leisure centre / swimming pool is an asset to Cheadle.  40 

Don’t knock down / close the leisure centre. 16 

Tidy up the current leisure centre.  17 

The current leisure centre is outdated.  10 

There is nothing wrong with the current leisure centre.  12 

Making leisure facilities affordable is important.  8 

Promote the leisure centre more. 6 

The current leisure is too expensive. 5 

I don’t understand what this means. 5 

We need to use leisure facilities to build a sense of community.  5 

This would help to attract visitors to Cheadle.  2 

We need leisure facilities to benefit people's mental health.  2 

The environment should be considered.  1 

We should improve shops to attract tourists. 1 

A new leisure centre is a priority.  2 

Other  57 

 
A few of the comments that were shared in response to this priority are included below. 
 
“There is plenty of scope to improve the existing facilities without moving to another site.”  

Page 23



13 

 
“Cheadle needs to keep exactly the current services provided by South Moorlands Leisure centre, with 
monies provided to update the current buildings, swimming pool, and add a larger "classes" room for 
such things like Zumba, Tai Chi etc. Coffee shop.” 
 
“This must include a swimming pool, minimum 25m and 6 lanes. Swimming is an important life skill and 
exercise for all ages & abilities at an affordable cost.” 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 24



14 

Priority five: Integrated services will benefit community health and wellbeing  
 
This priority sought views on whether options for the town centre should include integrated health and 
well-being services designed to improve service delivery and provide another reason to visit and spend 
time here. 
 
Respondents were asked whether they agreed or disagreed with this as a priority. Responses also 
included ‘not sure’ and the option to skip the question entirely if respondents did not want to answer. 
 
A summary of responses to this priority can be seen below. A full breakdown is included in the table 
below. 

 
The majority of 
respondents (61%) 
agreed that integrated 
services will benefit 
community health and 
wellbeing. There were 
also a significant 
number of people who 
were ‘not sure’. This 
indicates the priority 
wasn’t clear and easy 
for people to 
understand.  

 
 

Response Number of respondents Percentage of total respondents 

Agree 517 61.5 

Disagree 87 10.3 

Not sure  222 26.4 

Skipped 15 1.8 

 
98.2% of respondents chose to respond to this question. 
 
Respondents were also able to explain their response and add further comments in a free text box. The 
key points are listed below. 
 

Page 25



15 

 
● Many respondents suggested that the facilities at Cheadle Hospital should be integrated with 

new health services introduced.  
 

● Many respondents stated the view that Cheadle needs a hospital and it is an asset to the town. 
 

● A large number of respondents reiterated that priority five was too vague or difficult to respond 
to, further indicating it was not clear to generate a clear picture of local views.  
   

Comment  Number of comments 

Integrate or increase facilities at Cheadle Hospital.  137 

This statement is too vague to respond to.  50 

A greater range of services are needed. 29 

We need a hospital. The hospital is an asset.  22 

This will have a negative effect on services.  19 

Facilities should be accessible.  13 

It is currently difficult to get appointments.  10 

Keep it the same.  8 

We need a healthcare hub or a healthcare hub would be beneficial.  8 

Utilise existing services.  7 

Facilities should benefit the community/ create a sense of community.  3 

Affordability is important.  2 

Improving green spaces is important. 2 

Make sure money is redirected and not reduced. 1 

Investment in the local hospital is needed. 1 

Pollution is an issue. 1 

Find a better site than the hospital for this. 1 

Other  56 

 
A few of the comments that were shared in response to this priority are included below. 
 

Page 26



16 

“Should use the hospital to bring together services. The hospital should also provide other services to 
take the pressure off Stoke hospital eg x rays, physio, minor injuries. It also means an aging population 
doesn't have to travel for routine appointments.” 
 
“It depends what services you are referring to here. Integrated health services = yes, but sports facilities 
don’t need to be integrated with other facilities.”  
 
“We need a centre that provides blood tests, x-rays, visiting specialists, physiotherapy, mental health to 
name but a few. Cheadle and the surrounding area deserve better.” 
 
 
  

Page 27



17 

SUMMARY 
 

 
In total, 841 responses to the survey were gathered. This high response rate demonstrates how strong 
the community voice is in the future of Cheadle especially on issues such as parking provision and leisure 
facilities in the town.  
 
Just over half of respondents disagreed that welcoming more people to live in Cheadle should be a 
priority. The main reason people disagreed with this priority was that they felt that the current 
infrastructure and facilities in Cheadle are insufficient to welcome more people. Particular reference was 
made to oversubscribed schools and difficulty getting doctors and dentists appointments. Some people 
also said that Cheadle needs more shops. It was widely felt that the infrastructure must be improved 
before more people are welcomed.  
 
There was also a strong view that the road infrastructure in Cheadle is currently insufficient and could 
not support more cars that new homes would bring. There were repeated references to Cheadle being 
gridlocked with traffic.  
 
Many people felt that Cheadle is already overpopulated and that there are a lot of new housing 
developments being built at the moment.  
 
When speaking about housing, it was suggested that any new housing should be affordable or be small 
plots to encourage young people to live in and stay in the area.  
 
Some people felt that more people should be encouraged to move to Cheadle as it would lead to an 
improvement in facilities and services in the town.  
 
 
The vast majority (95%) of respondents agreed that we must make it easy to shop, spend time and 
money in Cheadle. The comments on this priority can broadly be split into two main categories; the 
shopping offer and parking.  
 
A lot of respondents felt that parking in Cheadle was too expensive and was detrimental to attracting 
people to shop in Cheadle. Many felt that free or cheaper parking was needed generally and there was 
also repeated reference to the need to introduce free short stay parking which would allow visitors to 
‘pop in’ to shops in Cheadle without having to pay. Some people said that there was nothing in Cheadle 
worth paying to park for.  
 
In terms of shopping, many people described the current offer in Cheadle as poor with too many charity 
shops, beauticians and takeaways. A lot of people said Cheadle needs more and a greater variety of 

Page 28



18 

shops with others saying Cheadle needs to attract big brands to the town. Some people said that shops 
affected by the landslide should be given help.  
 
There was also the view that the Council should do more to support local businesses such as by lowering 
business rates and rents and offering other financial incentives. It was felt that more should be done to 
encourage people to shop local.  
 
Many people said that public realm improvements were needed and that empty buildings made the 
high street look untidy. Suggestions for public realm improvements included pedestrianising the high 
street (or part of), better signage and the addition of benches.  
 
 
The vast majority of respondents (85%) agreed that flexible parking should be a priority in Cheadle 
although some people said that “flexible parking” was too vague a phrase to respond to fully. The most 
popular opinion was that Cheadle needs free short stay parking, there was frequent suggestion for free 
parking on set days or at weekends.  It was also felt by many people that free parking around drop off 
and pick up times at school should be introduced to help parents and encourage them to pop into shops 
after collecting their children.  
 
As in priority two, many people felt that the cost of parking is currently too high. 
 
Some people felt that the current provision of parking is adequate but that car parks should be in a 
central location in the town and that people should be encouraged to stop parking on residential 
streets. Some people also said that more flexible parking options are needed and some said parking 
should be easier.  
 
There was also a repeated request for the introduction of contactless methods to pay for parking in the 
town.  
 
The majority of respondents (83%) agreed that Cheadle needs to retain a similar leisure offer with 
improved quality of facilities. 
 
On this priority the most popular view was that the leisure centre should be retained and improved on 
the existing site and should not be knocked down or closed. It was felt that to move it would be a waste 
of money and that Cheadle residents should not have to do without a facility whilst a new one was being 
built.  
 
Many people described the leisure centre as an asset to the town with particular reference to the 
importance of having a swimming pool and that funds for this were raised by the community. Some 
people said that the swimming pool should be improved to accommodate a 25 or 50m pool.  
 

Page 29



19 

Another popular response was that Cheadle needs more and improved leisure facilities. Here people 
mentioned more group fitness classes and activities for younger people.  
 
The majority of respondents (62%)  agreed that integrated services will benefit community health and 
wellbeing. There were however a significant percentage (26%) who were ‘not sure’. This uncertainty is 
reinforced when we look at the comments, with a significant number of people saying that they do not 
know or fully understand what integrated services means.  
 
A lot of respondents felt that Cheadle hospital would be a good place for a healthcare hub with people 
responding that services and facilities should be integrated and increased in this building. Many people 
described Cheadle hospital as an asset to the town.  
 
Many respondents said that a greater range of services was needed. Additional services mentioned 
facilities to accommodate included x-rays, blood testing and a minor injuries unit.  
 
Some people said that integrating would have a negative effect on services whilst others iterated that 
making sure facilities are accessible is important.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



20 

APPENDIX A: ENCOURAGING FEEDBACK
 

 
Efforts were made to ensure that as many people in Cheadle completed the survey as possible. A 
community newsletter containing a pull-out version of the survey was distributed to just over 5,000 
residential addresses in Cheadle.   
 
This area covered all streets extending west to the junction with A521 and Brookhouse Road and 
Draycott Cross Road; those extending east to the junction with Ashbourne Road and Thorley Drive; 
those extending north to the junction with A521 and Hammersley Hayes Road; and those extending 
south to the junction with A522 and Dandillion Avenue and Eaves Lane. Further copies were made 
available in Cheadle Library / One Stop Shop. 
 
The survey was promoted on social media, via media releases to local news outlets, in an email update 
to schools within the Cheadle area and also directly by Council Leader, Cllr Sybil Ralphs during her 
interview on BBC Radio Stoke. The survey was also carried on the Council’s website and copies of the 
newsletter were available to be collected from the library or posted by request from the Council. 
 
People were able to post the paper version of the survey back to the Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council PO Box, drop it off in a dedicated feedback box hosted at Cheadle Library/ One Stop Shop or 
complete the survey online.  

 
 
Response 
 
In total, 841 responses to the survey were gathered; 721 digital responses (via the Survey Monkey link) 
and 120 as paper survey forms from the newsletter.  
 
With approximately 5,150 households in Cheadle, this indicates that 16.3 % of households completed 
the survey. The digital survey was available for multiple occupants of the same household to complete 
individually.  

A 2020 population estimate gave Cheadle a population of 11,253 which shows that 7.4% of the 
population completed the survey. See Appendix C for a full breakdown of Cheadle’s population. 

For a survey running for just a few weeks, this is a strong response rate demonstrating the strength of 
community involvement over issues relating to parking provision and leisure facilities within the town 
centre.  

 

Page 31



21 

Respondents by age 
 
It was important that the survey reflected the local community and a particular emphasis was placed on 
encouraging young people to respond. According to the 2019 population estimate, 31% of Cheadle’s 
population is under 30. See Appendix C for a full breakdown of the population by age. 
 
To encourage participation, Council Leader, Cllr Sybil Ralphs spoke on BBC Radio Stoke with a direct 
appeal to young people to take part in the survey. An update was also sent out to local schools to 
encourage parents and carers to participate and a specific media release aimed at getting this 
demographic involved was issued.  
 
The following pie chart shows a breakdown of the ages of those who completed the survey. A full 
breakdown is included in the table below. 

 
 
Whilst the age ranges for the survey 
and the population statistics do not 
exactly correlate, the response rate 
for the categories 18-24, 25-34, 35-
44 broadly reflects the population 
data, especially within categories 
covering those in their late 20s or 
early 30s. 
 
 
 
 

Looking at the age ranges of respondents, this shows a solid response rate across all age categories (18 
and above). 
 
 

Age range Number of respondents  Percentage of total respondents  

Under 18 3  0.3% 

18-24 33  3.9% 

25-34 102  12.1% 

35-44 149  17.7% 

45-54 153  18.2% 

55-64 137  16.3% 

Page 32



22 

65+ 211 25.1% 

Prefer not to say 18 2.1% 

Skipped 35 4.2% 

 
  

Page 33



23 

Respondents by gender  
 
Respondents were asked how they describe their gender and this breakdown is shown in the pie chart 
below. A full breakdown is included in the table below. 
 
According to the 2020 population estimate1 Cheadle's population is made up of 51 % who describe their 
gender as female and 49% who describe their gender as male. See Appendix C for a full breakdown of 
the population by gender.  
 
Surprisingly, almost twice as many female respondents completed the survey as compared to male 
respondents.  

 
 
Clearly this does not represent 
the population statistics of 
Cheadle.  
 
Given that women have been 
more likely to respond to the 
survey than men, perhaps it 
may be taken that women have 
responded on behalf of the 
entire household. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Gender Number of respondents  Percentage of total respondents  

Male 284  34% 

Female 504 60.3% 

Other 2 0.2% 

Prefer not to say 11 1.3% 

Skipped 35 4.2% 

 
 
 
  

 
1 www.citypopulation.de/en/uk/westmidlands/staffordshire/E34003425__cheadle/  

Page 34

http://www.citypopulation.de/en/uk/westmidlands/staffordshire/E34003425__cheadle/


24 

Respondents by ethnicity  
 
Respondents were asked how they describe their ethnicity and this breakdown can be seen in the pie 
chart below. A full breakdown is included in the table below. 
 
According to the 20202 population estimate, Cheadle’s population is made up of 98.6%  who describe 
their ethnicity as White English. See Appendix C for a full breakdown of the population by ethnicity.  
 
Respondents were given a large choice of options, only those which were selected are shown below.  

 
The response rate by ethnicity 
reflects the population data.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ethnicity  Number of respondents  Percentage of total respondents  

English 748 88.9 

Welsh 4 0.4 

Scottish 1 0.1 

Irish 1 0.1 

Polish 2 0.2 

Any other White background 4 0.4 

White and Black Caribbean  3 0.3 

Black, Black British or Black Scottish 1 0.1 

Other  8 0.9 

Prefer not to say  14 1.9 

Skipped 34 4.5 

 
2www.citypopulation.de/en/uk/westmidlands/staffordshire/E34003425__cheadle/ 

Page 35



25 

Location of respondents  
 
Respondents were asked to provide their postcode. A breakdown of respondents location by postcode 
can be seen below. A full breakdown is included in the table below. 

 
The vast majority of 
respondents, 93%, used a 
Cheadle postcode to complete 
the survey. This indicates that 
the survey results directly reflect 
the views of those living or 
working within the town.  
 
 
 
 
 

Postcode  Number of respondents  Percentage of total respondents  

ST10 775 93% 

ST13 1 0.1% 

ST8 1 0.1% 

Skipped 31 3.6% 

Other 25 3% 

 
Within the ‘other’ option, respondents were able to specify their postcode. A breakdown of the other 
category can be seen below. 
 

Postcode  Number of respondents Percentage of total respondents 

ST11 14 1.6% 

ST9 4 0.4% 

ST3 3 0.3% 

ST14 2 0.2% 

1TQ 1 0.1% 

PO21 1 0.1% 

Page 36



26 

Respondents by connection  
 
Everyone who lives, works or visits Cheadle was encouraged to participate in the survey. Respondents 
were asked what their connection was to the area.  
 
On this question, respondents were able to select multiple options. A breakdown of respondents' stated 
connection to Cheadle can be seen below. A full breakdown is included in the table below. 

 
 
The majority of respondents 
indicated ‘I live here’ with over 17% 
stating that they shop in Cheadle.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Connection to the area Number of respondents Percentage of total respondents 

I live here 751 59.9% 

I work here 138 11% 

I study here 4 0.4% 

I own a business here 44 3.5% 

I do my shopping here 222 17.7% 

I’m just visiting  8 0.9% 

Other 49 3.9% 

Skipped 37 3% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



27 

APPENDIX B: COPY OF THE SURVEY 
 

A copy of the online survey hosted on Survey Monkey can be seen below.  
 

Page 38



28 

 

 

 

Page 39



29 

 

 

 

Page 40



30 

 

 

Page 41



31 

 
 

APPENDIX C: POPULATION STATISTICS  
 

 
Overall population 
A 2020 estimate3 from the City Population website 
(www.citypopulation.de/en/uk/westmidlands/staffordshire/E34003425__cheadle/) puts the population of 
Cheadle at 11,253. This website uses statistics from the Office of National Statistics, based on the 2011 
census.  
 
The following population statistics have been taken from the same source.  
 
Gender breakdown 

● Male- 49.4% of the population 
● Female- 50.6% of the population 

 
Age breakdown 
 

● Under 18s- 20% of the population 
● 20-29-11.2% of the population  
● 30-39-10.6% of the population 
● 40-49- 12% of the population 
● 50-59- 14.9% of the population 
● 60-69-12.5% of the population  
● 70-79- 12.8% of the population  
● Over 80- 5.6% 

 
 
Ethnicity breakdown 

● White- 98.6% of the population 
● Asian- 0.7% of the population 

 
3 www.citypopulation.de/en/uk/westmidlands/staffordshire/E34003425__cheadle/ 

Page 42



32 

● Mixed/ multiple backgrounds- 0.6% of the population 
● Black- 0.08% of the population 
● Arab- 0.01% of the population 
● Any other ethnic group- 0.03% of the population 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meetings - 22 June 2021 (Panel Meeting) and 7 September 2021 (Engagement Review Meeting)
	Minutes Engagement Review meeting 07.09.21

	3 Survey Results - Report from Filigree Communications

